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Chapter I
Eerly History of Harper County

The history of Harper county, like that of the state of
Oklshoma and the United States, hes been modified by physiecal
environment. Harper county, which during its recorded his-
tory has existed under more than & half dozen names, is lo-
cated in the northwest part of Oklahoma. It is bounded on
the north by Kansas, whose southern boundary line was esteb-
lished by Congress in 1854 at 37 degrees north latitude.l
The eastern boundary is marked by following the course of the
Cimarron river and is also bounded by Woods and Woodward
counties to the east.2 It is bounded on the south by Wood-
ward and Ellis counties. The western boundary if marked by
the hundredth meridian, established in 18033 by the purchase
of Louisiane and reestablished by the terms of the treaty of
February 22, 1819, ratified February 19, 1821, between Spain
and the United States.4

It extends from townships 25-29% N., inclusive, and from

Cong. Globe, 33 COng;, l sess., 1854, pp. 44-87.

£ Oklahoma Geological Survey, Bulletin No. 5, May, 1911,
PP- 153.

- 5 M. Marshall Hiatogx of the Western Bo ggz of the
Louisiana Purcﬁaae P. 8.

Hunter Miller, Treaties and Other International Acts of
the United Statel of America, 111, Arts. S, 5.




ranges 20-26, inclusive. The county includes twenty-two en-
tire townships and parps of twelve others. Throughout the
extent of this territory of 661,120 acres or about 1,075
square miles, there is a variation of climate, but the mean
temperature is mild.S The variation has been due to frequent
wind storms in recent years and the unequal distribution of
rainfall through the seasons. The rainfall is light, aver-
aging little more than 20 inches annually prior to 1930. The
average annual rainfall from 1930 to 1939 was 14 inches, with
only 12.30 inches recorded for the year 1937.6

The eastern portion of the county lies in the area of
the Gypsum hills, while the remainder of the county 1135 in
the High Plains region. Gypsum hills are quite numerous in
the northeastern part of the county, and the drainage of this
portion is east into the Cimarron river, prinecipally through
Buffalo creek. The southwestern part if drained to the south-
east through the Beaver river to the North Canadian river.

The altitude of Harper county is 1,850 fest; the surface
is high plain broken by steep-sided canyons. The topography
of the land is rolling, but in many parts of the county it
is very rugged.’” The soil, which is a.diaintcgratod out-
wash from the Rocky Mountains, is varied, ranging from hard

5 ok%ahofas?eplogioal Survey, Bulletin No. 40, (July, 1930),

Federal weather reports for Harper County. Local Observer.

Oklahoma Geological Survey, Bulletin No. 5, p. 153.




prairie land to sandy loam, intermingled with rolling-sand
sections. The soil is generally drouth-resisting.®

The population of Harper county in 1907 was 8,089;
in 1930, ?,761.9 The estimated population for 1939 1is
6,500.10

There has been much speculation concerning the inhabit-
ants of this region prior to the visit of Coronado. No
organized archaeological excavations have been made in this
particular locality, and it is not definitely known that
Indians made this land their permanent home at any time.
Many fine archaeologicel specimens, however, have been found
in widely separated areas in the county at various times.
During the recent wind storms, which shifted a large area
of sand near the Beaver river, a large number of arrowheads,
a bone sewing needle, and other articles were uncovered.l
Many additicnal arrowheads have been found along the streams,
and a large number have been found in the vicinity of Doby
Springs. These findings indicate that Doby Springs was a
very desirable camping site for the Indians, perhaps because
of the abundant water supply and the grove of trees.l2

On the banks of Otter creek west of May, Oklahoma, a

highly-engraved brass powder-horn was found by Roger end L.

® fThe Oklahoma Almanac, pp. 56, 157.
10 pased on 193¢ School Census Report.

11 Reminiscences of T. V. Terbush, Rosston, Oklahoma, March
10, 1937.

12 peminiscences of W. N. Miller, Buffalo, Oklahoma, April
6, 1937.



D. Dungan in 1935. Several other articles have also been
found in this region, including several arrowheads, a gun
barrel, two gunstocks with flintlocks still attached, and
several loose flintlocks.l®

In the Cedar Canyons north of May, some interesting
articles have been uncovered. In the spring of 1937 a party
of students from the May school unccvered what appeared to
be a cave high upon the side of the canyon. By digging in-
to this area they uncovered several silver buckles, beads,
arrowheads, and humaen bones. On & farm s8ix miles northwest
of May a part of the jawbone of a mastodon with the teeth
still intact was plowed up a few years ago. This specimen
measured more than two feet in length.l4¢ Several mastodon
bones have been uncovered in sand and gravel pits in various
parts of the county.

Perhaps one of the most interesting archaeological
specimens found in Harper county is a very fine Indian spear
found by S. H. James in 1893. He found this spear while
gathering buffalo bones. It evidently had been driven
through the body of an animal by & hunter and remained in
the animal until he hed traveled far and then died. The
spear was made of steel and had a blade twenty-one inches

long with five and one-half inches of steel in the handle.

1%  peminiscences of Roger Dungan, May, Oklahoma, October

20, 1937.

14 Reminiscences of Lynn T, Miller and Roy McMillian, May,
Oklahoma, March 15, 1937.



It was undoubtedly meade in Europe and was used by the
Indians in killing animsls for food. |

Mr. James, who was an old buffalo hunter and had spent
several years among the Indians, deseribed how this type of
spear was used ss a hunting implement. The Indians, on
horseback, threw at the animals from long distances. The
spear sometimes went through the animal into the ground and
sometimes might be carried in the body of the animsl for
several miles when improperly thrown.ld

Regardless of speculation concerning early human inhabit-
ants, it 1s evident that great herds of buffaloes roamed the
prairies for hundreds of years. DBecause these animals were
known to have lived in this section, and because arrowheads
and spears have been found, it is believed that these lands
were frequented by the Indians as they slowly moved from one
hunting ground to another.

Buffaloes were common in all parts of the state, though
they did not gather in immense herds in the timbered regions
as they did on the treeless plains.l® In the accounts of
Coronado's march thousands of cows or buffaloes were re-
ported in the plains region, which includes the western part
of the state. Hundreds of buffalo wallows existed in Harper

county at one time, and a few may yet be seen in places where

15 Reminiscences of Mrs. H. M. McClung, Mey, Oklahoma, May
20, 1939. This spear is in the possession of Mrs.
McClung, who is a daughter of Mr. James.

16 Joseph B. Thoburn, History of Oklashoma, I, 6.



the land has not been plowed.

George Catlin, in 1831 and 1832, spent some time in the
plains country and became familiar with the buffaloes and
many of their habits. Catlin describes how the buffalo
wallows were made in the heat of the summer by these huge
enimals. They often grazed on the low grounds in the
prairies, where there was a little stagnant water lying in
the grass. The ground underneath, being saturated, was soft,
and the enormous bull, lowered upon one knee, would plunge
his horns and at last his head into it. He tore up the
earth and soon made an excavation into which the water fil-
tered. This formed for him in a few minutes a cool and com-
fortable bath, into which he plunged like & hog into the
mire. In this laver, he threw himself flat upon his side
and forced himself violently around with his horns and the
huge hump on his shoulders. He plouged up the ground by
this rotary motion and sank deeper and deeper in the ground,
until at length he became nearly immersed in this enlarged
peool.

It was generally the leader of the herd that made this
excavation. He stayed in the pool until inclination induced
him to step out and give place to the next in commend. The
animals advanced forward in their turn to enjoy the luxury
of the wallow, until the whole band had passed through it.

Sometimes a hundred or more passed through the ow in

the space of half an hour, until an excavation of [fifteen

or twenty or more feet in diameter and two feet in depth



had been formed.l?

Coronado crossed western Oklahoma in 1541, seeking
"Quivira,” that fabled land of wealth and happiness which
Indians had described to him. Through his explorations the
claim of Spain was established to a great amount of terri-
tory which comprised the southwestern portion of the United
States. The route which Coronado followed from Texas
started near the one-hundredth meridlan and followed a
parallel route along this meridian to the north, traversing
the present Harper county and crossing the Cimarron river
at the Kansas and Oklahoma boundary line in the northeastern
part of the county.l®

The route of Coronado in his famous expedition from
the Pueblos of New Mexico across the prairies of Kansas to
the populous tribes of the Missouri will ever remein a
question. The only point located with reasonable certainty
is the salt plaln of the Cimarron, Jjust within the Kansas
line, the only place where salt rock can be obtained on the
surface in the plains country. This salt was known and used
by the Indians, and was an article of trade from the Culf
to the British line. This locality was a well-known geo-

graphical point from which distances were reckoned.l®

17 George Catlin, North American Indisns, pp. 380-381.
18 illiam Shepherd, Eistorical Atlas, p. 190. :

19 7. R. Mead, "Coronado's Route,™ Kansas Historical
Collection, V, 89.




In 1682 Robert de La Salle reached the mouth of the
Mississippl river and claimed the majestic river and all
the land it drained for his sovereign, Louis IIV of France.
The country weas named Loulsiana. This was the first name
given to the country which included the area later to be-
come Harper county.

It will be recalled that, while the claims of France
and Spain were not identical, they greatly overlapped, and
that ell of Harper county was included in the lands claimed
by both countries. When the war between France and England
developed in the middle of the eighteenth century it spread
to the American colonies. Spain was involved in the war as
a result of the Family Compact which existed between France
and Spain. England was the victor, and as a result Spain
lost territory in Amérioa to England, as did France. TFor
the loss of territory suffered by Spain in this war, France
ceded all the Louisiana lands to her by the Treaty of Paris
in 1763, and in 1800 it was retroceded to France by the
Treaty of San Ildefonso. In 1803 it was acquired by the
United States, but the treaty made in Paris in 180320 simply
stated that France ceded the Province of Louisiana with the
same extent of territory that was 1n the possession of Spain
when she ceded it to France. Texas was not included in the
purchase, and the boundary lines between Jefferson's

Louisiana Purchese and Texas, then & province of Spain, is

20 Marshall, op. ecit.



the present boundary line between Texas and Oklashoma. In
the course of negotiations after Louisians was purchased
from France the Americans expressed the desire that the
boundary line be definitely and accurately described.
Napoleon and his advisers took up this point, and Napoleon
is reported to have said, "If an obscurity does not already
exist, it would, perhaps, be a good policy to put one there."2l
Plans made by France and the United States to survey
the boundary line between Louisiana and the western terri-
tory were not carried out, but, after the Congress of Vienna
and the retrocession to Spain, the United States made another
effort to have this line drawn definitely.22
As Spain laid claim to this territory, the United States
had to make several proposals to Spain before the two came
to an understanding. John Quincy Adams took up the task and
carried it to a successful conclusion. After much diplo-
matic correspondence between the Spanish minister, Don Louis
de Onis, and the American Secretary of State; John Quinecy
Adams, and after many proposals and rejections were made by
both countries,®3 the negotiations were closed in 1818. They
were resumed on February 11, 1819. The Spanish minister
urged Adams to eccept the Arkansas river instead of the Red

£l 71pid., p. 18.
22 71pig., p. 66.

23 _
Annals of Congress, 15 Cong., 2 sess., 1817-1818
Pp. 1315:155%. ; g ; 3
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river as the boundary.z* In reply Adams made his last
proposition®® to the Spanish minister, which ultimately re-
sulted in ratification of a treaty on February 12, 182l1.

Both Texas and the United States based their claim to
the area in dispute under the terms of the treaty of TFebruary
22, 1818, ratified February 19, 1821, between Spain and the
United States, sc it 1s necessary to understand the boundary
as agreed upon by Adams and de Onis:

The boundary line between the two countries west
of the Mississippi shall begin in the Gulf of Mexico
at the mouth of the river Sabine, in the sea; continu-
ing north along the western bank of that river to the
thirty-second degree of latitude; thence by a line due
north to the degree of latitude where it strikes the
Rio Roxo westward to the degree of longitude one
hundred west from London and twenty-three from Washing-
ton; then crossing the said Red river and running
thence by & line due north to the river Arkansas; the
Arkansas to its scurce in latitude forty-two degrees
north, and thence by that parallel to the South Sea.
The whole being as lald down in the Melish map. But
if the source of the Arkansas river shall be found
to fall north or south of the latitude forty-two
degrees, then the line shall run from the said source
due south or north, as the case may be, till it meets
the said parallel of latitude of forty-two degrees;
thence along the said parallel to the South Sea.26

Harper county was a part of the Louisiana territory
from 1803 to 1812. When the State of Louisiana waé created
in 1812, the remainder of the territory was renamed the
Territory of Missouri. In 1821 Missouri was admitted to

the Union, and the remaining territory became Indian Terri-

24 71pia., pp. 2111-2112.
25 1pid., 16 Cong., 2 sess., pp. 2120-2123.
26

Miller, Treaties and Other International Acts, Arts. 3
and 5.




tory, although very vaguely defined.

In 1828 the Cherokees West, as they were called, moved
to thelr new homes west of the White river in Arkansas,27
They soon became discontented because of the encroachments
of the white man in this territory, so they petitioned the
Covernment to give them new lands elsewhere for thelr land
in Arkansas. The Cherokees selected for their new home
seven million acres in the northeastern part of what is now
the present State of Oklahoma. In addition to the lands
thus granted they were given a prerpetual outlet to the west,
consisting of all the lands adjoining their home lands
proper on the west as far as the sovereignty of the United
States extended, which then was the hundredth meridian, or
the present western boundary of Harper 6ount7. This treaty
between the Western Cherokees and the United States was
signed May 6, 1828, and the Cherokees moved to their new

homes at onge .28

27 Americean State Papers, Public lends, I, 125.

28 (harles J. Kappler, Indian Affeirs, Laws, and Treaties,
II, 2856-291.




Chapter II
Development of Harper County

Harper county was originally prairie land covered with
a luxuriant growth of buffaloc grass, crossed by several
small streams of running water, and with sufficient natu-
rally protected areas to make it an ideal home for the buf-
faloes., With the coming of the ranchmen in the late seventies
the buffaloes disappeared, and large herds of cattle replaced
them,

Perhaps the largest ranch to be established in Harper
county was started by Charles F. Colcord of Texas. He
brought a thousand mares from Texas and started a horse
rench, This was soon superseded by the Comanche Pool Ranch,
a cattle ranch comprising most of Harper county, Oklahoma,
and Comanche county, Kansas. The headquarters for this ranch
were located north of Buffalo creek near the present site of
Buffalo.l

For a time the cattlemen in Harper county were able to
graze the lands without cost, but in 1880 the Cherokees
changed their poliocy and collected a fee or rent money, per-
mitting the ranchmen to remain with their cattle on the In-
dian lands as long as this annual fee was paid. In 1883
the Cherokee Strip lLive Stock Association was chartered

1 Reminiscences of George Rainey, Enid, Oklahoma, August 15,
1938. :
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under the laws of Kansas with headquarters established at
Caldwell, Xansas. The organization leased for grazing pur-
poses from the Cherokees the unoccupied part of the Outlet
for one hundred thous&nd dollars annually for a period of
five years. The lease'was renewed in 1888 for two hundred
thousand dollars aa.an annual payment end would have expired
in 1893; however, President Earrison issued a proclamation,
forbidding all grazing on the lands of the Cherokee Qutlet,
end all cattle were ordered removed by October 1, 18%0.2

In the meantime other interests were busy, and Congress
was being urged to open these lands to white settlers. In
March, 1889, an act of Congress was approved creating a
comaission to negotiate with the Cherokees and other western
tribes relative to the cession of their lands. The Cherokees
were to be offered $1.25 an acre for the Outlet, and, should
they accept, the land would be opened to settlement.® This
offer, of course, was rejected by the Cherokees, because they
had been offered considerably more by the cattle industry,
should the land ever be for sale. Saoretar& of the Interior
lioble expressed his views in a letter to Ceneral Lucius Fair-
child, chairman of the Cherokee Commission, who was then
at Tahlequah., He declared that $1.25 per acre was sufficient
and that their right even to use the Qutlet was in doubt and
likely to be removed entirely.4 Late in 1891, the Cherokees

2 Zdward I. Dale, The Range Cattle Industry, pp. 149-154.

% vUnited States Statutes at Large, XXV, 1005.

4 pawara E. Pale, The Cherokee Strip Live Stock Association,
Pp. 73-74.
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n agreement with the Cherokee Commission ceding the
lands of the Qutlet for & little over eight and & half million

dollars, or approximately 21.40 an gcre.? The agreement was

£

reached in December, apd the Qutlet was soon to ceass being
z cattle country.

Trom this goint the khistory runs vith amazing rapidity.
It sarks the coming of ploneer farmers who brought wives and
children and household goods in the covered wégoa thet has.
rlayed 8o large a part in the settlement of the Great jest.
These pioneers were men who dresaed dreams and sede dreans
coae true, $o thet today Herper county amight have &ll her mode-
ern organizations and townsg. 'The phenomenal develonuent may
be attrituted in the main to three Tactors: first, the indom~

itaeble will and esusrgy of ite people; second, the pericd when

it was settled; and third, the vast richness of itg soil.
Cn Ssptember 16, 1893, the Cherokee Strip of six million

acres was opened to vizite settlers. The ezst portion of the
Gherckee Strip to a line just west of Coirfield and Grand
counties was opened with the provision that £2.50 per scre

be pald by the homesteader. Froa this line to about nine
miles east of Alva a« price of 21.50 per acre was charged;
then, from this line to the hundredth meridian £1.00 per acre
was o be pald by the settlers. Harper aduﬂty was, of courss,

ineluded ia the western nortlon, 2ad the graduated charge set

by the Coverament indicates the approxiiste value of these

wesbern acres 1ln comparison wlith the rest of the Cherokee Strirn.

S Kappler, op. cit., I, 489-494.



Pree homes were soon &dvecoted in Congress and, finally,
& gecond bill calling for "Fres Homes", which was introduced
by Deanie T, Flynm, hecame & law Hay 1%, 1900. The only
charge t¢ be made wue the usual and customery fee for 2
patent to_tﬂe lend, which waeg to bhe paid at the lund office.6
There was, indeed, great vejolcl ng by 31l homestenders through-
out the Cherokee 3trip.

Herper county wasg originally & part of "HY county and
was deslignated 8z gueh by the Secretary of the Interior
during Clevelzund's sdministratim in dugust 1898, prior to
the opening of the Strip in September. The name remained
T gounty until 1894, when each politiesl perty in cueh
county was to seleect & name %o be voted on by the pesople at
the first genersl slection, which wes in Hovember 1894,

In this eleetiaﬂ the name Woodward county was gelected by
the people, the name being taken from the town of Woodward
which wes named for en executive of the Santa Pe Reilroad,
B. W. Woodward. When the Constituticnal Convention met at
Guthrie in 1307, a comnithtee on counties wag apiointed with
Chorles H. Haskell presiding as chsirman. Earper county was
named for a celerk in the Constitutional Convention, Oscar C.
Havper, 2 prominent gltizen of Buffd o. The name was
Sﬂggéated by Delegate Willilame Trom Woodward o unty &t the
Conastitutionnl Conventlion., Herper county wes oreated fronm

the northwest part of o0ld Woodward county.

United States Stetutes 4t Ierpge, ZEXI, (1899-1901), 179.
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The Buffalo townsite was designated as the temporary
county seat until an election could be cal led to determine
the permenent county seat loestiom by & popular vote of the
residents of Harper oounty.7 0. G+ Harper, MoMinn, and
Miller, formed & townsite company, and the whole of Miller's
160 wes platted and placed on the Woodward county records
as the town of Buffalo. Of course, this action anticipated
securing the ecounty seat in the center of the eou.nty.e The
townsite was & bere preirie owned by W. He Miller, & farmer.
Harper county is approximately forty by twenty-eight miles in
silze and wos without & single organized town government in
1907. Brule, & county post office, located in the same section
as the new town site of Buffel o, had two or three trading
stores, but it was not & town. The nearest rallroad station
to Buffalo was Ashland, Kansas, vhich was thirty miles distant.
The location of the seat of Har per county at Buffsal o became _
& soandel in the Constitutional Conven tiom. Delegate Williams,
who lived in the county, and 0., G. Harper, for whom the
county was named and who was employed as & clerk in the Conven=-
tion, were accused of improper conduct in having the seat
located at Buffalo. Brule was &lso & rival for the tempor-
ary locetion. The charge was investigated and declared un-
founded by the Convention,

There were three major groups in the county, each seeking
to win popular opinion in favor of their particular townsite

. The Brule Post, January 17, 1907.
®1vid., Jenuery 11, 1907.

9Phe Harper County Demosret, April 19, 1907,
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as a2 peraanent location Tor the ecovubty sest. Cne groun coun-

f) g

tended theaet the location should be made at th” Enprings

I ]

£

anothier faveored the origzincl location, while sbill gne

othier group stron

%

T T I T, . . - ¢ oy o L o e & | N
whiech woa made the vemporzry county seabt. For a tiase the

Baffalo and Brule Taectiong would aot harmonize as theae two
locations were on the same section nesr the central nart of
the county. The two groups were finally united in zetting
ablished at Buffaleo; however, the eflforts of
the Zioby Spriags faction mefs renewsd to atreagthen their
contentions for ths loeation te be aade at thelir bowasite.
A newspanar mublicity canpaign was sooa ilnaugurasted,
whick was an iaportant factor in getting the ccunty seat lo-
cabion where it is today. The two or three remaining bulld-
ings of DBrule wers moved to Buffalo in the spring of 1907,
Buffalo is situated in the gecopraphiical center of the county.
Locatsd upon a besublful relling site, Buffelo presents to
tﬁé'éye the scene of an ideal locsticn for a couaty sest,
born to beauty andé romance. The county was given five lots
ia each block and sn sdditionel entire Block for cecunty build-
inez; enother block was set aside for nublic school purposes.lO
The Buffelo towusite wes opened up the last of May, with
one of the largest crowdsg ever geen in that part of the

country. George L. Ford of Guthrie, commnissioner in charge

of the Fulffalo townsite, saild that it was the biggest

10 1vis., april B8, 1907.
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vusinese he had cever dono in openins 2 towansite.ll Three

N~ B = P A o e o A3 oy S '
tacusand dollars wortkh of lobte wang 2014, and conbtracts

dpllars worth of
A ]

R ] F ey e e o R N e L Y S R LT " D S ol mle ¢ o oo .
buildiags, wiich vere to be coapitructed of Lriek, stone, or

concrets .12

il prule Post, dey i, 1907.

[
12 gne following poen was an important factor in popular-
izing Puffslo as the proper location for the county
seat. It made its first appesrance ian the SBrule Post
and later in the Harper County Dewccret after ite es-
tablishment.

Buffalo

An Indian had & vision,

Baw a town here long ago,

Wnile the airage painted pilctures
‘Hong the graging buffalo.

¥e rode nis pony hoameward,

To the villasge of his tribe,
And he told his story plainly
snite of many & jeer und jibe.

Then he provhesied the comling,
0f the white men in a horde.
That should ocecupy tie coualry,
Build & eity at the ford.

Build a2 city large snd stately.

hat would strive and thrive and grow,
Sald the vision wmeant the fading

Cf bobth tribe and m»uffirlio,.

well, the buffalo has vauished,

Ané the tribe 1is long d4issolved,

Azd the bullding of & city

Is officially resclved.

By mandate ¢f the people,
O & acw state yst to be,
A county seat of government,

5

There established for the free.
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tancs north of the towa. Some of the vory early wmaps ¢of
the couatry e Cheryonee Yutlet was thought of

&3 ¢ sultable place for homes show this Bulffale cresk.

Tuls Teaot oouses cone to sssusie that the ereek was undoubtedly

g

fevorite watering place Tor the bulfaelo herds which rozued
tiis sectlion ut an early dats.

Doby Dprings, 1n the mesunbise, was contiauwlag o zrow
and expané, and the future plauns for 1ts growth were care-
fully kept beiore the people throusi the aewspaper colunns,
hecauss the tise was drawing asear for the selection of the

county seal loecatioca by poepular vote of the people. Thedection

iné the white man farns the land,
Lnd o thousand products grow,

In the valley of the vision,

On the banks of Puffsale.

18 the cily in its voraning,

Cteps agiant in its strids,

while the visloa spreads the story,
¢f its coaing far eand wide.

FHow the Indian end the vision,
sre but memovies hare below,
So the e¢ity in the making
Texes the nase of Dulfalo.

Harper coubty iz the ezrvin
Twixd uimaiﬂon and Deever,
Twvelve thousand Tarmers

Froa wildervess retrieved her.

And the new ~tute ef Cklshoma,
Tecund "“IlLand of thic Talr God,*
Heart's cholce of white and JYudian,
Gf all the lands they trod.
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was & bitter contest, and the w te was olose; however, Buffalo
won over Doby Springs, and the permenent county seat loecation
was established at Buffalo in 1908,

County officers were elected Tuesday, September 17, 1907,
by the people according to & proclamation of Governor Frank
Frentz to cote on the constitutim and the electim of county
and state officers. In the first election the democrats made
& clean sweep, oc&p turing every county office and carrying
the county for every state officer exoept Haskell. The
following county officials to serve were: J. L. Griffits,
Judge; E. L. Hubbard, clerk; W. A. Davis, Treasurer; M. P.
Terry, sheriff; W. L. Little, register; Mrs. S. A. Criswell,
superintendent; W. He Miller, surveyor; H. F. Stecker,
coroner; E, J. Dick, attorney; G. B. Carpenter, J. W. Clark,
and J. R. Litz, commissioners., J. E. Foster was appointed
ag deputy aheriff.ls

When the new county began business, there was no court
house, no records, and no funds with which to carry on the
government, The 0ld county offices were over the old Carl
building and over the o0ld Central Bank build ng. They have
been located in var ious buildings over town until the con-
gtruction of the mesent court house in 1928,

Harper county has always gone Republican in the general
eleotion prior to 1932; however, since that time it has gone
Demoocratic. The explanation for this spparent struggle in
politics is readily found in the merging of settlers from

19 The Herper County Demogret.
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the north and the south., Thus, the southern influence
contributed to the Demooratic politicsl policies, as opposed
to the Republican policies from Kansas and the stat es to the
north.

From Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, Texas, and other states
of the middle west and south, came the hardy pioneer settlers
of Harper county. They were of many nationsl ities, and only
in a community north of the present town of Selman was there
an entire group of ane nationality, This group was of
German descent and still lives in the same community. These
include the Yauks, Hopps, Martins, and many ot hers,

The story of the settlement of Harper county wes a
strenuous contest between these rugged ploneers and primitive
conditions, The difficulties T be encountered were meny
and hardships menifold. The settlers lived off the meager
savings which they brought them until their first crope could
be grown and merketed. In many instances the wife and child-
ren were left behind in their dugout or soddie, while the
head of the family sought work elsewhere ar picked up dried
buffalo bones from the prairies ® secure & few dollars.

The first few weeks or months on & homestead were busy

ones for the settlers end their families. The homes vwhich
conslsted in most cases of sod or adobe had to be built,
Some were dugouts or shacks of mugh bosrds. 4 fisld and gere-
den had to be plowed and planted, and shelter m ovided for the
livestock consisting of a team of horses or mules and & milech
cow. In most cases the purchaése of enough wire to enclose a

field and gerden and securing windows end & ore for the sod
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house usually exhausted their little capital.

The account of S. H, James, who made the "run" to Earper
county, illustrates the story of early settlement., After he
moved to his homestead, near the present town of May, he gath-
ered loads of buffalo bones, which were plentiful all over the
prairie country, hauled these bones to Dodge City, and sold
them, and with this money he bought lumber for the framework
which was to go into his new home. With the help of T. H.
Bonnett and two other men he built his first home, 2 sod aad
frame house. The house still stands on the farm and is in
very good condition. The family lived in it thirty-four
years before a new home was built in 1937.14

The first farm machinery used in Harper county was the
old sod plow, usually homemade, and more improved plows were
later used for turning the soil. The machinery used for the
earliest wheat harvesting was the hand sickle and cradle.

The first crops raised in the county were kafir, maize, and
other small grains., Wheat was not raised extensively until
several years after the turn of the century, and this was

brought about by the demand for wheat during the World Var.

Wheat claims the meajority acreage of the 661,120 acres
in the county. All land in farms April 1, 1930, totaled
594,120 acres. The report of January 1, 1935, showed en in-
crease to 619,663 acres, or the proportion of the entire

county in farms is 93.7 per cent, of which approximately

14 MeClung, cop. cit.
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323,833 acres sre in cultivation. This inorease in farm

agreage was due principally to tw faotors-~lessening of the
terrific dust storms snd government sscistence. These dust
gstorms h&ed caused several thousand acres t become unpro-
ductive; however, muech has been done since 1934 to0 correct
this condition and prevent the large amount of eroding soil
thet waes characteristio of this period. Attention has been
directed to cover erops. OCrop 10 tation and terracing has
been introduced to improve the conditions of the farm lands,
The federsl forestry service added tex miles of shelterbelt
plantings in the county in the spring of 1939, wh ich makes &
total of fourteen miles of shelterbelt trees for the county
gince the federal government stepped in four years ago to

oombat drouth, dust storms, and erop failures with its vast

plains shelterbelt program.l6

The Red Menace swept into Oklahoma in the spring of
1934, Dust! Dust that blinded the sun, brought
darkness at midday, spread deso lation over miles of farm
srea and chocked the threats and hearts of men.

The black treacherous cloud that smothered crops and
citles beceme & familizr sight to the state.

Hardest hit were the western and panhandle counties.
Great dunes of sand and dirt covered fields, drifted
to the eaves of buildings, hid farm machinery as it
stood in the opena. In the midst of a cevere drouth,
nothing could grow., Feople were without food, &nd
government relief became necessary.

eeesesThousands paoked their belongings and started a
trek for any place where tlere was no dust or where
there was & possibility of wrk and food.

U. S. Bureau of the Census, United States Census of Agri-
culture, 1935, I, p. 718,

16 Reminiscences of W, E. Bland, County Agent of Harper
county, May 25, 1939.



With the help of the government and the state,
those who stayed won out. Miles of shelterbelt trees
were planted across western Oklshom&., Rain finally
came; the dust was not so freguent nor so bad. The
dune covered flelds have been reclaimed @nd are aga.'ﬁ
green with crops for man and pasture for his stock,.

The most recent project establighed in the county is a
Federal Civilian Conservation Corp camp, locel ed adjacent to
and west of Buffalo., Building of the barracks and the estab-
lishment of the camp was started in June 1939. Building of
dams and terrecing the farm lands of the county will be the
work carried on by this octmp under the direction of the fed-
eral government. Tbis is another important step taken for
the prevention of soil erosion in the arid west.

Stock raising wes an importent indnstry at the time the
country was eettled but soil eonditions were later found to
be best suited to wheat. Sorghum, milo, kafir, and hay also
have a considerable aoreage. The average wheat yield for the
county is ten bushels per sore. There is some experimentation
with cotton; however, only one farm reported any cotton grown
in 1934, This was & field of twenty acres, which produced a

total of two bales.rS

There were fifty one farms reporting
alfalfa grown in 1934 with & total of 897 acres which pro-
duced eight hundred and forty-six tons, In 1929 there were
1,306 scores in alfalfa, No timothy or clover is grown in the

gounty. 19

17
18

The Daily Oklehomen, June 11, 1939,

_U_. gc canauﬂ. Pe. 732,



The following comparative table for the years 1929 and

1934 is important, becsuse it shows the trend of land use

prior to and immediately &f ter the drouth mad dust storms,

which had practically caused hundreds of acres to become

sub-marginal land.

I. Ferm land agoording to use:

1.

2.

3e

4.

5o

7.

8.

Crop land harvested seceee

Crop fal lure ssescscesssss

Crop land, idle or f&l low.

Plowabhle pasture ceecesces

Woodland p&etura ssecscases

Other Pasturo ssnssssssese

Woodlend not pastured s.e.

1934

1929

1934

1929

1934

1929

1934

1929

1934
1929
1934
1929
1934
1929

All other lands in farms ..1934

1929,

Farms reporting-732
Aores-64,106

Farms rep orting-1,1565
Aores-247,5696

Farms reporting-1,078
Acres-1656,349

FParms reporting-79
Aeres-4,307

Fams reporting-747
Aores-36,016

Farms re orting-79
Acres-4,307

Farms reporting-139
Agres-15,840

Farms reporting-314
Acores-31,207

Acres~- 8056
Aeres- 708
Acres-321,549
Acres-288,364
Agres- 401
Agres- 1,374
Acres- 15,598
Acores- 18,474
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9. Iend available for CTOPE sesses 1934 Mr”-231,310
(harvested, fal lure, idle,

fallow and plowable pesture)es. 1929 Aores-285,897 0

The compsrative study for the years 1930 and 1935 in the
following table shows the relatim of economic oondit:lma, st
storms, and orop fd lures as potent fectore in loss of owner-
ship of farms, It is evident that there is & deorease in the
number of part eand full ownership of farms @smd an increase

in tenant farmers during this per od.

1. Farmg and farm operstors:
l. FBumber of farms .esse Jamuary 1, 19356 1.150

April 1, 1930 1,204
2, Parm operators (white) ..eesscsnee 1935 1,150
1930 1,204

3. PMarm operators by tenure

8. Pull OWNErs secsecesssssssses 1930 376

1930 450
be Part OWNErs ccsecessccssssess 1935 3561
1930 379
6. Managers sesssssssvsacsnss 1930 5
1930 2
d. Tenants sescsssssssssesss 1935 418

1930 373 20
I1I. Farm aoreage, value, &nd land area:
l. Approximate lend area 1935, aores -- 661,120

&, Proportion in farms per cent -- 93.7

20 1pia., p. 718.
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2, Average size of farms 1935, acres --- 538,8
1939, acres we- 494.0

3. 411 land in farms January 1, 1935 «--619,663
April 1, 1930 ---594,817

4. By tenure of farm operator

a, Full owners 1935, acres 154,080
1930, acres 167,382
b. Part owners 1935, sores 270,808
1930, aeres 272,504
¢. lMenagers 19356, aecres 26,7856
1930, sacores 22,260
d. Tenants 1936, acres 167,990
1930, acres 132,671

III. Vel ue of farms (land and tuildings):
l. Jenuery 1, 1935, totel velue ... § 6,942,750.00
2. April 1, 1930, total value ceees 135,308,965.00
3+ Average value per scre, 1935 .ee 11.20
4, Average value per &gre, 1930 ses 22,37 21
IV. Dwellings on ferms January 1, 1935:
l. Ocoupied dwellings, total number ..esessl,150
2. Unocoupied dwellings, totel number seesse 119
V. ALl ows end hoifers, 2 years old md over, Jenusry
i, 1938. .
1. Total NUMDET weescecsssssssssssssssssseld, 598 =
VI. Iivestock, fotel number, Jamwary 1, 1935:

l. Horses, all ages sesesssssssenss sanss 4,887

2

3

21

22
83

U. 8. Bureau of the Census, I, (1935), p. 718,

Mo, 11, p. 724.
Ibid., I, p. 729.
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2+ JMules, all ages sesesesssssosasnenens 822
3. Cattle 6nd CBLVES seevssssnsesncscsssss 27,847
4, Swine, all ages essssssssssecsssssses 2,380 —

In 1895, a compeny of farmers was f mmed in the Diteh
Valley Community along the Cimsrion river in northeast Herper
county, and lerge Irrigation d toches were milt dll over that
part of the county for use of smbseribere in the compénys This
is & strip of vel ley land nine miles long end from three to
four miles wide, comprising apwoximately 4,000 aores of land.
A competent engineer was employed to layit awt and only me
chenge has been maéde in the syctem as it was first laid out.
Thie change was made necessary beceuse of damage done by high
waters in the river. The system, however, has been extended
and improvements added at various times in recent srer:-r::z:.g5

Irriget ion has dlways been landled &s & private project.
Esch farmer does & certain part of the necessary work on the
mein diteh or pays for having it done. The & tch was built
in the first place with this sane arrangemen t, end as & result
the initiel cost would be diffio?lt to figure. The principal
coste in maintaining the mein ditch is oleaning it out about
every two years and the work at the river, turning the water
into the main ditch.

There is no dam in the river, but the water is
diverted into the diteh by means of & temporary send dam
which extends just far enough into the stream t di-

vert the amount of water deslred., It requires & nman
with & team and & slip sorsp er at this temporary dam

" e, .o

5 Reminiscences of Kinney Iockspeach, May 25, 1937.



nearly «ll the Hme whepn weber is bolng vsed from the
ditch.

The gize of the ditech verice somevhat a8 the fdl
vari eg, but the averasgo width is about 10 feet, and the
depth in midsiream abovt & feelt. The zwmount of vater
ﬁlcgingjinvﬁﬁgwgitgh wb?n it ig ﬁzggimg noar its capacity
ig abount 12 cubie feet per second.®

From the main 4iteh the water is spresd over the fields
by using latervals or smell ditehes. There is no regulor time
Loy ivrigition glnce the raina.are depended upon for an
adequate supply of water im the Cimarron river. The amount
used is generelly uncertain slsgo, since there gre not gotes
or measuring boxesm in the mein diteh or laterd s, In come
instonces o me Farms pay geﬁ‘tao much wetear, while others
mey get too little. The weter of the Cimerron 2% this place
is somewhat ealty, and, were it not for the fuet thet this
ivrigated land iglﬂa%nr@lly wdl 1 drained, it would not be
posgible to use the ﬁétar many yea s without ruining the land,
In sone feow low spots where the water does notv drein well
and is ollowed ta.at&nd the land will not produee begause of
the pelt deposit left by the wator.27

This vaelley ig irrigated by gravity fleow snd the truet
ig gouth of Bngleowood, Zumsesm. The pibteh of the lend &t this
bpoin% gauses all the land svailsble for irrigetion to be on
the Oklahoms gide of the Oklabhoma-Hansas boundar y line. The
Gimarrpﬂ river in the irvigeted aren is flanked by high sand

ridges, in which & Tew gopes make posgible the flowing of the

26 Re Bently, fGxtension Division, Oklahma A, znd M. College,
Irrigetion. Cizeulsr Ho. 11l. January, 1920,

Ibid,.



wetor throtugh the ditchws ceross the Tlots on the sounth side
of the river. Mhig plaon bis served the v es through the joars
and wee exbengively used in 1987 when the sirly sonring reing
geve promige of & bumper wheat ¢ p and then ceoased at a

3
eritical poried. DPhe water from the river wag pnoured iptoe the

& N &

X&—n

drying fields, ond clmost cver night tho fields became grecn

and produced abundantly while others sevoss e road thet

b . s . e " . . 2
were not given the benefits of Irwigetion dried vp ond died. 8

Pal

The lond irvigeted ig in posscsaion of comperatively

few pergons, They meodvee wheat and allelfs principally,

AT, 37

getting from fovy 10 gix cwope of alfalfe from the lond ezch

x

season. This le the largest ivvigsted arez in Oklahoma, wnd

the only irzvigoeted ores devobed nearly owxelnsl vely toc wheat

@

The trocte of irrzigeted wheat lord renge fron helf sections

spwerd, with none of the traote lsss then helf sections.
The covanty tsseseor's booke list the velue of the Diteh
Valley irrigeted land 2t 425.00 per sere, 1989 assess meﬂt.gg
ek ic to be agid ahcmt the value of irrvigetion in the
county. The water eameé from welle in mat ingtances and re-
presents & considersble irvestnant for thorewho gee it To
nge this method., Some pigmeera in the sounty, however, have
basn very suvecessful in bhelyr attempds ot well irrigation.

Hauvipped with centrifupgsl pumps, capable of produvcing as high

ag one bhousand gallong ¢ minvte, Vho wells will produee an

%8 1pia.
29 whe Harper County Jeurnsl, July 20, 1957.

3 . .
o Herper County lissessment Dooks, (198¢).
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inexhaunatible supply @f.wa%ex 2t thls teryific rate, Alfzifa,
sorghunes, truck gerdens, ond other crops hiove Deen grown SUCCERS-
fully the past few yeurs in wpite of the lzek of rainfall,

de C. Holmos, ILyle 30ll, end the Dobsrtson brotasrs of Iaverne
bave mude sucoesstul atteuwpts &b well irvipget ion, prompled

by the shallow woter in the Bew er river botbom londs.

The County Chomber of Commorco ko dlwws upheld ivrigation
and bog done much 9 promote it in the wounty. TPormer Stebe
Senutor, Be L. Howsley of Guyme , was vital ly interested in
well irrigetion as the salvetion of the srid west end cupuoried

leggislution, which wuld bave brought ebout extensive core

]
]

rilling all over the northwest mrt of the st e. Hisie

[#

guuipment was to be uwseld, 2nd the drilliing woe to ldeternine
definitely how for the Termere might go in providing irrigé-
tion for thelr crops. The senotor was defeat ed in the primery

glection im July, 1938, and to dat ¢ nothing e been done on

Irrigation by puwaping wator te the surfasce by wiadmill
2nd then letting it run through small ditehse onto the crop
to he irrigeted has also Doen succensfnl for parden ploks.

3

The sugeeos of thi irviget ion wag pmven by Mrs. B

- S
tpe of

Z. Paalk, west of Buiffelo, vho for three @ nsecutive years

o~

won the highest ronlk in & gardes project gponﬁaxsﬁ by ‘the
Hdome Demonstretion Clubs of the county. This type of lrriga-

tion, however, is not extonsivdy use@ aver the county end

5' ] Y 2 e o~ ap ~ . 5
t Reminisecences of R. L. Howsley, ey 20, 1938,



s P & B sy gy da F e o o3 v R
ig euployed ip irvipgatins emell plod

i’ﬂ
fote
by
€1ﬁ-
)
[0
G2
3¢
ot
(4]

Iﬁ 1928, sn extension of the lerze I lkes
reglon, walch sre in Deuver county ond adjiomt 6 the norbh-
weat pard of Herper ceouaby, wag proposcd. The woter from these
lakes would be used %o irriput o the northesstern part of Beaver

and the novibwestern part of Harper county. 4n atteupt teo

%]

form & compeany in thig stme yewr failed, and the ywoject wog
dropped for several yesrs., The moet recent wo ject 2lonz the
line of lrrigation is the pfapased Cimaryon river dam projeet,
whieh wonld be built oan this riveT over the Kansag line near
Bnglewood, Kansaes, which would serve northwest Harper countye.
This is merely enbryonic, and procsdure isowsitdag fovor-
able reports fram,govexﬁmant gngineers who vigited the site
5

in the ewmmer of 1938. o3

Barly transportetion in the county was fer inferior to
the present modern ﬁﬁreamlim@ type, emerging from the froight
wagon nd horges to the present d eveloped gystan. The nezvest
rellwey centers were lecated outeide the counbty ot Snglew od,
Fensee, Yoodwrd and Sage, Oklshome, which would reguire two
or three doys to make the vound trip.

Befores there were any shorse ¢t the present site of me; ------ /
stioh family got their food end d othes from Toodward or Suge.

Traveling in & vagon, 1% would take two days to make the

round trip, and enough groceries ito lost from four teo six

Reminiscences of Milo W. Watwa, Herper County Jounrual,
Angust BZ, 19 58 “ <

3E .
Wateen, QOp. Cit.
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months were bought. They got their mail ot Gl y@ad

. IR D

about thirty-five miles from this new eompunity. %héﬂ s
0 7 B 3F i

wEuS lly made on horsebuck &nd nsu glly recuired two gcy’s%é’gggg

-

the round trip.o- This is representetive of the entire county
as there were no treding points or post offices established

in tha county until 1897. ©Phe rei lroad wag alse late in being
built through the county. The first telephone line esteb-
lished through the county was completed in the spring of

1907; the line ren from Supply in Woodwsrd county to Kibby
and from this point on to Baffala.gﬁ

A newspaper repafter for the Bruls Poat counted £ifty-

thres teams, wagons, and bnmL is, and Sle?en saddle horses 2t
one iime the latter part of Janunary, 19 906,96
A propoved rallroad route in 1907 waz to have bheen build

from Raton, Hew Mexico, to Oklahoms City, vhich would heve
troverged the county from northwest to sonthesst 97

- The Pirvst railroad to be completed in the county wasn the
Beaver, Mezd ond BZnglewood, which was completed im 1912, @nd
sorves the soubthwostern pert of the county. The towns
served are Moy, laverne, and Rosston, and only & grain elevator
remeins ot Tunlap, which developed into & gmall town when the

reilrosd was first put through. %his line was run from Wood-

ward to Forgaen at first end leter extended to Keyes, Oklahoma,

r-sé N ‘v .
HoClunz, Op. Cit. ) .
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Brule Post, Mey 31, 1907. » o .
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line in 1930.

Buffalo is the western termipus of ¢ Sente Fo rellway

gxtension completed in 1918 from Veynole. Phis road is fifty-

. five miles long, snd the cltizens of Duffalo will long remome-
ber its completlion. After years of effort im trying to seoure
a f&i}r@a& through the county setd , the Jonts Pe projeet was
begun, only to be discontinued when helf completed beczugse of
& lack of funds, The citizens of Duiffulo ond others along

the line of the new rozd boughit several thovsand dollare of

rellrood stock to get the line wmpleted, Selmen, the other

town in Harper county to be served by thisz line was built

S$

after the rallroad was completed &nd wos noned af Yer Jim Selw

- man of Wooldward, whose rvéanch partially lieg in this ar@a.ﬁﬂ
Highways in the county were long negleeted, apd prior +0

1930 there was not 2 hard surfeeod rosd to be fouvnd. This

had long boen & problem &g the roads were very bud, especially

when there vas an excegs of roin at any one tlme, . Sincs

1950 roads through the couwaty hwve been improveld snd eztonded,

and today there sye three federel herd surfaced highways znd

- one stete highvey covering the county from north so south and

from ecet to weet. The federsl highwys are Te 5. 64, 883,

and 270, znd the gitzte highway is number $4.

He Ha &rwold, of Buifaleo, zmpointed oheirmen of the State

Hichway CGommission during Sovernor Inrray's e dninistretion,

[d

- pes reoppointed by EGovernor orlend, serving o portion of the

2

Reminiacences of E. Leoe Adame, suguet 25, 1938,
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term as chairmen and the remainder as & member of the Commission.

During the Murray administration, Buffalo was made & divi-

sional center for the State Highway Department with offices

and equipment buildings located there., In 1937 & fine brick
residence, costing several thousand dollars, was bullt on the

same site for the chief engineer and his i'amily.sg

%9 Reminiscences of H. N. Arnold, September 18, 1937,



Chapter III
Educational Development of Harper County

A modern hospital is located two miles northwest of
Buffalo, owned and operated by Dr. B, F. Camp. The hospital
was established in 1937, when Dr. Camp purchased the county
farm upon which was located & home which he constructed into
a modern and well equipped hospitsl, easily accessible from
all parts of the county.

Schools have evolved from soddies to modern structures.
The early settlers of Harper county believed in education,
and in many communities the first enterprise was the erection
of a school building. Mrs. A. L. Rodkey, who came to the
county with her husbend at the time of the opening of the
Cherokee Strip, was smong the early school teachers. She
served without compensation until the settlers could make a
crop and funds were made available. Her first school, located
in the northeast part cf the county, was conducted in a sod
house, and the length of the term was four months .1

The only settlers in the vicianity of the present town
of May, until 1895, were S. H, James and H, J. Bonnett. Mr.
James had three small children and Mr. Bonnett had five;
together the men built the first school house, which was
located Just northwest of the James homestead. The buildiﬁé

1  Reminiscences of Mrs. A. L. Rodkey, November 7, 1936,
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weg & anaell strvcture mede of sody and the only children
etvtend et first were Trom these Ywo Topilies. Phe firet
tezcher for the sechool wes 1. Bonneti.

Cther exrly school teschers were lirg. Fennie Mller,
-who Beught ot Brule; lirs. 8. A, Crigwell, vho taught in the
nérth;part of the countyy Irs. 2. &, Criswell later, after
gtatehood, becume the first couvnly superintendent. Wa De
ﬂ&wku, another ploneer teachor, =lsgso letar beceme sounty
superintendent,

the first schools were finsneed by the gubscription plan,

0

or the teachers géve theolr services fres to the strugsling

oy

communities which operated thelr gschools for cpproximately

Cfour months. Yoxtboolks were selscted by the ¥ stchers,; how-

4.

ever, bhe ehild wes wsuelly baught %0 rond in whatever book.

-

he brousht %o sehool, vwhether it wag the Bible or the llo-
2 »

2

chool was uvnlknown during thess

23
€Q

Guifey vouder. girade
earlieor years, ond the children studiled recding, writing,
Carithmetio, spslling, and somell mes hintory snd geopraphy
were wdded if the temcher ssw the prechticulness of these

subjeosts. Thers wee pno promotion frowm one prade to suother,

and the sbillity Yo spell coritain words or periforn certain

operoti

ong in arithmetic determined the sducsb i schievo-

74
e pupils and the right to pursme advenced work.”

The edusabionsl influsnoes in the ploncer days were not

wholly confined to the school roonm, &8 coniboets wore wade with

£ meminiscences of W. D. Drake, Lpril 20, 1937.

r

4y

Ibid.



the few travelers when they passed through the territory and
conveyed news and informetion, There were numerous occasions
on which people agsembled and di scuessed current problems
brought from all sections of the country. There were many
socializing influences, such &s singing conventions, literary
societies, and picnics,

Pie suppers and dances were common enterprises to raise
funds for & school building or school furniture after the
turn of the century. A new school house was built at May,
in 1905, and the funds were raised by giving pie suppers and
dances., County superintendent B. B. Smith, of Woodward, helped
to orgenize a large distriet for seversl miles around May.
When school opened there were seventy-two students; however,
they had expected to have about a hundred. S. H. James, who
wag & member of the local school board, received fifty
applications principally from eastern Oklahoma from teachers
wanting to teach the school when it opnned.‘

The Pleasant Valley School, southwest of Buffalo, gave
an ice cream supper to raise funds to buy desks, which netted
$11.50.% Through similer efforte, the school room wes
equipped, and greater effort was put forth to extend the school
term. By 1905 a few of the schools were able to have & six
months term. This wes true of district 178, where W. D. Drake
was the teacher, Mrs, Fannie Miller in the s ame year was

employed to teach two schools of four months each--one was

mclm' Q. MI
Brule Post, July 28, 1905,




the Brule school and the other was the Shane diatrict.s

The towns of Buffalo and Iaverne today have modern semi-
fireproof school buildings with spproximstely sixty and eighty-
two square miles in their respecti ve districts. Each town has
an enrollment which averages about four hundred and fifty,
including all grades., They have &an enriched eurriculum which
includes home economics, manual training and woodwork, commerce,
vocational agrioulture, and instrumental and vocal music in
addition to the ascademic subjects,

May, Rosston, Selmen, and Kibby are the other town schools
with an area and enrollment consid erably smaller than the
Buffalo and Laverne schools. The subjJects off ered by them,
however, rivals the larger schools.

In addition to the town schools there are fifty-four
rural schools in the county, which 8till meintain their
individual school program under the supervision of the county
Buparintandentov

Of the fifty-three churches which heve been organized in
Harper county, only twenty-six are still sotive--sixteen in
towns and ten in rural areas. There are twelve denominations
represented in the county, ten of which have & ctive organiza-
tions.

The active denominations are Methodist, Baptist, Christian,
Disciples of Christ, Assembly of God, Catholie, Pull Gospel,

Nazarene, Iutheran, and True Followers.

6
7

Ibid,.

Reminiscences of Leec Adams, County Superintendent, April
28, 1939.



The ten sctive rural ehurches are at Speermore, Selman,
Mount Olive, Ellendale, Pleasant Valley, Chorleston, ILone Tree,
Paruna, Plessant Hill, and Girard,S

The first church was & Baptist church at Doby Springs
and was organized in 1895, Another church to be established
about this same time was on Otter ocreek in the southwest part
of the gounty. Other churches followed in repid succession
as communities developed &t Brule and Mount Qlive, The first
church in the northwest part of the county wes orgeanized
in the Liberty Union Community. The building wes gonstruoted
of sod and very little remains of this early structure today.
The church wes organized by J. K. Baker, in :L?;(T)E.%,,9

A historie old rock church still stands in the southeast
part of the gounty as a monument to the pioneers., The church
weg of the Southern Baptist denomination and was orgam ized in
1903 with & log cabin school first used for services, In 1906
the members of the congregation erected & beautiful building
of natural stone, which still stands, although it has not been
used since 1919, Mr. James Odell, was the first pastor of
the church,?

There are no public libraries except those in the sohools,.
Various elubs in the county heve talked of establishing a
library for several years, but their funds hsve always found

’ Je K. Beker. The Reminiscences of J. K. Baker, April 29,
1939.

o The Harper County Journal, April 22, 1939.



other disposition before anything was actually accomplished.
The civic minded citizens recognized the serious need of
establishing publie libraries in the county, however, the
school and private libraries are the only sourees in any of
the towns at present.

Hunieipal parke and playgrounds in the towns of the
county heve, only recently, been given mech attention. ILaverne
has & munieipal park in which is located & municipal swimming
pool, recreation grounds, end & Boy Secout hut. These im-
provements were brought about by a bond issue by the town
of Laverne and a federal grant in 1936,

Buffalo hes & eity park which for several years hasg been
neglected becsause of the lack of funds on the c¢ity's part.
However, & loeal elub has frequently come to the rescue by
providing funds for the upkeep &nd care of the grounds and
tennis courts. The latest addition is & new roadside park,
located at the south side of town on U. S. Highway 64 and
constructed under the suspicies of the State Highway Commission
and completed during the summer of 1938, The towm of Buffalo
sponsored the construction of a swimming pool in the park, aad
it was opened to the publiec August 19, 19358, The pool, thirty
by seventy feet, ranges in depth from three feet to ten feet.
A wading pool fifteen by twenty feet, renging in depth from
one to two feet, has also been built to sccommodate smaller
children. Pirepleces and tables are also here for the con-

venience of tourists or any person in the eommnnity.11

1 Watson, Op. Cit.
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The most noted and probably the most widely used park
in the county is Doby Springs, the history of which dates
back preceding the opening of this land to aettlamentlin 1893,
This park is located eight miles northwest of Buffalo,
end affords ample grounds for large pienie groups, sueh as
schools and eclubs., There is & small lake in a natural
gsetting of trees which is continuously fed by & dozen springs.
The lake in the past has been used for boating, swimming, and
fishing quite extensively, and there is still considerable
fishing at the lake,and many large fish, such as bass and blue
gill, are frequently caught.

The annual Doby Springs rodeo is held near the park eadh
sumnmer and is co-sponsored by the town of Buffalo and Ace
Soward, & rancher near Buffalo. During this annual affair,
the park grounds are used by carnival concessions and other
entertainment, as well as & camping place for those vho wish
to stay. The popularity of Doby Springs is due mainly to
the pleasant grove of trees and the good spring water of
which there is an abundance.

The town of Buffelo has & deed to the springs and after
years of difficulty in laying & substantial line; 2 successful
water system was completed in 1938, which serves adequately
the neéds of the town. There is a fall of one hundred &nd
forty feet from the springs to the town which provides a
natural gravity system, eliminating the necessity for forced
pressure.

The smnicipal water system of Laverne has a capaeity of
fifty thousand gallons per day which is supplied from wells.
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The other towms of the county mmst depend upon the cisterns
and individual wells, while in the rural sections an addi-
tional source of water is supplied from springs. Some wells
contain good water, while others contain hard gyp water,
because muech of the county is underlsid with gypsum and other
mineral deposits,

There are but two newspapers in the county at the pre-
gent time~-one 18 located &t Buffalo and the other &t Laverne,
with publications once esch week, At one time there were as
meny &s three newspapers at Buffalo, one at Laverne, and
one 8t May. The first newspaper to be established in Harper
county, which was then & part of Woodward county, was the
Brule Post on June 6, 1905, by Williem Forster who was editer,
publisher, and proprietor. The paper wes issued once each
week. The next paper to be established waes The Herper County
Demoorat in April, 1907, by E. Lee Adems of Yelton, Oklahoma,
The paper was located at Buffalo, and one publication was mede
each week.

The present newspaper plants are very modern, &nd the
Harper County Journel located at Buffalo has been given state
Felr awards as follows: first place in 1935 for press work
among dailies and weeklies, fifth place in 1936 for special
edition of weeklies and dailies, and again first place in 1937
for general excellence for weeklles of towns less that 2,000

12
population.

12 Reminiscences of S. E. Lee, Publisher of The Harper Count
Journal, April 29, 1939, Zhe Harper County



CHAPTER IV

ECONOMIC PROGRESS OF HARPER COUNTY

Perhaps the greatest rival of the Chisholm Trail was the
trail in the western part of the state that carried cattle
to the Indian reservations and ranges far to the north. It
wag perhaps the best known and longest uaed.;' After the
traffic shifted to Dodge City and after 1880, mmeh of the
driving wes diverted to this western trail,?

The old Western Trail was & transcontinental cow path
beginning &t Paso Grande, Texss, at the point where the Rio
Grande flows into the Gulf of Mexico. Its route threaded
northward across the state into the Indian Territory end
Kansas, then diagonally to the southwest corner of Nebraska,
on the the northeast corner of Wyoming and into Montansa,
crossing the Yellowstone River at Frenchman's Ford across
the HMissouri River at Fort Benton, and northwest to the Black-
foot agency. The trail crossed the Red River into the Indian
country at Deen's Crossing, north of Pesse River. It swung
8lightly northwest ﬁxmugh old Greer county and crossed the
Salt Fork near the western boundary of the state. After
erossing the North Fork, the trail turned back slightly north-
east crossing the Washita near the present location of
Cheyenne in Roger Mills county, veered northward to Camp Supply

1 B. B. Dele. Renge Cattle Industry, p. 64.

2 H. B, Collins, Warpath and Cattle Trails, p. 262.
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on the Canadian River, ran due north threugh Harper county,
and orossed vhere the river bows out into Icsu;msui.3

The first herd of cattle was driven up the trail in 1874
by Mexwell ani Morris. In 1877 Carwin F. Doan located and
established & post on the south bank of Red River. 1In 1881
the trail resched the peak of production; in this year three
hundred thousand gattle were driven by this post to shipping
points in Kamas..d‘

In following the West Texaes Trail through Herper county
it entered from the south at Otter oreek, south of My, crossed
the Beaver creek near the mouth of Clear ereek which is located
about three miles northwest of May, then on north by or near
Buffalo Springs, now called Doby Springs, and then over the
divide into the headwaters of Redoubt oreek in the northwestern
part of the county and then on morth into Ksnsas.’

Melch Ortiz worked approximately sixty years as a cow=-
hand and worked in and around Harper county for years. He wae
born of Mexican parents but did not know the exact date. His
birth ocoured possibly in Victoria, Texas, however, he did
not remember his parents. He grew to manhood in south Texas
end participated in cattle drives through Indian TPerritory to
Dodge City and the Dakotes. He started work on the Grimes

ranch when he was twelve years old and made his first cattle

% E. B. Dsle. "Ranchipg on the Cheyenne-Arapaho Reservation™,
Chronicles of QOklahoma, VI, p. 3b.

4 E. E. Dale. (Oattle Renge Industry.

b He S. Tennant. "The Texas Cattle Trails," Chronicles of
Oklahoma, XIV, p. 86.
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drive at the age of fourteen yecys. By the time he wes six—‘
Yeen years old he was "trail bose” of an outfit of bends. B.
Re Grimes, & Xensas end Oklshoms rageher, is the son of the
men for whom Ortiz storted working. The aged puncier dled 2t
Buffale in ipyeh, 1938, at ithe age of seventy-pine. Hig
life wes uvndoubitedly representativs of hundreds of other
hardy old charecbers who blauzed trails through this pazd of the
sountry, wihen the Indiens were tyying to halt the enerotch-
mente of the rsnchers and vhite setblsrs, One instence about
which he told transpired while he was working with & band of
catile herders near vhe present gite of Bulfalo. Tﬁ@ae&nw we.s
attacked during the night by & bapd of Iandiens, and one covw-
hand wae glaln. He wee buried near the present home of Mre
RBay Pittmen in the porthwest part of what ig now the town of
Buffelo. The atbtack came s o complete surprise, but the
govboye were 4ble to drive the Indicnsg off without furither
loss of lifaa

Ortlz worked for the Grimes brothers for thirty-six yewrs
and came ug vhat was then called the festern Prall im Tewes,

in 187% apd 1884, with hords of eabttle thet were &riven from
7

Texas to Dodge City, Hensas, for northern markatd.
Ure Co C. Doby, another "old timer™, rode the eattle

traile for FTorby-five yesvs Jdor different companies in Indian
Territory and several adjoining stetes apd psde the yon into

Harper eounty in 1693.. He bad been around Buffale Spriegs

& Reminiscences of Melch Orbtiz, Sepbtamber 15, 1937,

" H. 5. Tennsnt, Op. Cit.
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r‘

with hords of gatitle and was familiar with the desirable

surroundings of this localibty befare the land was opened bo
setbiements Irs Doby Filed sa the claim =2t Buffalo Springs
in 1893 end lived on the pluce untlil the year 1912, Simllar

1

to obher cholve spots in the Cherokee Btrip, the Duflfale
Springe, later called Doby Sprimge, with 1ts everlesting
supply of spring wobter ond pleasant grove of trees wes re-
garded a8 2 very desiruble plade for & home. The rvace Tor
thig loeation the day of the "Qpening® sterted fron Zaglewood,
Kansay, aﬁd the race waes hotly contested; however, Doby won
the race, beotuse he had the festest horso.

Ons of tho moet interesting stories of & Horper wualy
plonesr is the 1life of Samusl Hoveton James, cousin of the
0ot oriaus Jesge James. He was born 1ln Tennesgee in 1801 apd
moved with his pervents to Ulozmonrl and FTenses immediately after
the Civil Ver. Uhen haxdly mor ¢ than ﬁlanw he began work a8
a froighter bebtwsen Leavenwor th, FRensss, ead Sanba |
Hezicos Ilghts with the Indlen bonds wers 211 too freguent,
and in ons of these Ur. James hod & brother killed by the red-
gkineg. All of Jemea? eg@erieneeg‘with the Iﬁdi ware not
wnfriendly; he spent seversl years among bthe Indians snd
munted mffelo in the B@ otag. «While among the Indlong he
galned 2 knowledpe of Hptvro's working end knew the sooitod
slgne fortelling westher, crop pvQSﬂac%S, medical knowlsdge

and meny other gifte whieh becams & part of his life. He

® Reminiscences of Iws, Meud Uiz, Fobruzry 20, 1958.
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became rogarded wg & sort of sage by %the people of may.i

In 1887, he moved with his Temily %o Fe ln's Iand where
ke engaged in ferming and stoek raising, During the yoars of
resid ence there ne held contracte for sueplying hay bo the
government cavelry post at old Port Supply. While enpgaged
iﬁ‘thiS'wnrk_he h@e&me familisr with the countzy along the
Beever River, and, when the Cherokee 3trlp wes copened fox
goettlement, he filed as 2 homesteader nesr ay.

1r. James made the "run® on hig big bay horse with
~enough food btled on his saddle to last & few days until he
covld properly eteke hig claim. The intoresting part of this
particular run weg the faat that there were only two femilies
in this pzrélcoular nelghborhood who stelked clsime, The couatry
was wild prairie, unbroken hy'cultiv&tiog, uﬂpeoylea, and
almoet desolate ezmeept for the buffaloss, antelopes, decr, nd
szzller animale that lived there, which were plentiful for
several yeare after the settlement by $ames, but ag mre people
ceme in the enimals were killed or werse driven from the ¢ountry.

fhe first store in this eomounlty wae egtablished on
Otter cresk in 1897, by Porterfield. The selection of 2 nane
for the new villege was mde by Ire Jomet. While the nen
vere trylng %e decideo on & nene, My, Porterficld had boen
standing holding his badby givl, by, and taking part ig the
discussgion. The name by wasg accepted for the town, which is
located near the Besver river in the souihern pardt of the

caaﬂty.g

9 ycClungz, Op. Cit.
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TFhe first.c@&e Yo be bried in Harper eounty was thet of
Tom Crouch, who on Saturday evening while the grand stete-
hood ball was goipg on got in & mizup with one of the musicians,
Seversl holeoy were st thvough the wells of the 0dd Fellows
Hall before he could be arrested by sheriif Terry. He was
released the Tollowing londey under & $200 bond. Reburning
the following Viednesday, he plead guilty of carrying & re-
volver und was fined $25.00 and cozts by county judge J. L.
Griffitta‘lo The vheools of Jjuntice were hot slow in gebbing
gtarted in the new county ag this inecident shows.

Pew industries exist except Tferming end stock reising, for
the country hos never been industrially inelined; bowever, the
Buffalo Community Cresmery comblanes both industriel and
agricuitural interests of’%helﬁeunty. It was organized under
the direction of 4. 0. Archer, of Keytesville, Miesouri, and
gsponsored by the Buffalo Chambaer qf Commerce. Plans were
begun lete in the fall of 1936 and the cresmery wos opened for
buginess June 9, 1937. It io cooperstive in desizn, although
it wes organized under the corporation laws of Oklahona,

This wae done g0 28 1o permit the peyment of regular monthly
dividends to every paﬁron'af the eroemery, regardless of
whether he was & stockholder ovr not. In effect, bthe orveanery
‘really pays cord price for o famewv's cresm at the time it

iz delivered; then the eroum ie churned into butter, sold on
the Chicago markest, and the profit from the osale ip divided

among the patrony of tho eXeamery. 4L cenb, however, is set

10 Brule Post, Hovember 22, 1907,
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agide for each pauhd of buﬁteﬁfaf purcheged to form & sinking
fund to take gare of aepreciatian and improvements.

The‘efeamary hag been very suwoeessful and bffers an oub-
let for another ferm commodity, which in the past has been
very wmuch neglected and in mony instonces wasted. Eaoh year
it hés mesnt & considerable Lloss o the farmers uatil the
eztablishment of the ersamery,

In a statement mede by D. W, Groea, maneger of %The
¢reamery, at a stockholdars moeting in May 1938, it wee shown
th&£ the creamery had purechased one hundred elghty-twe thousend,
four hundred and eighﬁyéamﬁ pgunés of butterfat during the
Tired ten‘ﬁqnths afvopératiaﬂ,'from whigh vas ghurned approx-
im&tely'EEG,OCO pouads of butter. From this amount of hutter
a tobtal of $7,448.30 had been p2id back o the cream producer
in the Torm of additional profits, which ho would never have
reélized pad the ereaﬁery not been erganizeﬁ.ll

The gtory is just o atrong glince the statement ves
cnmpilea. liore roubtes have been sgtablished izbo an enlarged
territory to bring the oveam of more forxmers %o the creamery
twice ench weok. During Joly of 1956, naarly 36,000 pounds
of butter were churned. 4 program of deiry herd improvenment
is also under the sponsorship of the eresmery.

In 1939, the construction of an eddition to the eroamery
hes besp completed at a cost of @2,@00.00 including building

and machinery. - Pasteurized millk, buttermilk, and cotitage cheoese

il Reminiseences of W. D. Green, October 20, 1939.
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are produced in the new department,

The oreamery churned more than 400,000 pounds of butter
during the second year of its operation, and plans to increase
the amount to more than & half million pounds during the
third year have been md.e-lz

In the area of Harper county no well should be started
unless it is planned to drill to a depth of 4,500 feet. Even
a well drilled to a depth of 5,000 feet will not encounter
the Pennsylvanisa beds unless it should so heppen that the well
is located upon & promounced fold or structure, the evidence
of which at this time is not known. It 18 certain that any
well drilled less than 4,000 feet has but elight chance %o
find oil in commercial quantities. Development in Kamar‘
county will, therefore, be slow dne largely to the expense
involved in d.rilllng.w

Hatural gas wells were developed in 1930, east of Laveme
in Harper county. These wells supply I&verne &and Buffalo with
fuel gas for domestic and genersl uses and for heatinge. There
has been some drilling done for o0il in the county from time
to time, but to daste there has never been & substantial show-
inges The deepest drilling in the state was dme in the Gypsum

Canyons in Harper county. The Sincleir 0il &nd Gas Company's

14
drill reached & depth of 8,660 feet without finding oil,

12 gerper County Journsl, June 12, 1939,

13 %m Geological Survey, Bulletin No. 40, II, July,
s Po .

14 1pia.
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After several years of inactivity in drilling and leas-
ing, several thousand scres have been lessed north and west
of Buffalo during the years 1937 to 1939 by the Sinclair
Company end other major compenies. Drilling operations were
begun in this new area five miles west of Buffalo in the spring
of 1939, by the Sinelair 0il and Gas Company. On June 2, 1939,
the well had resched & depth of 5,500 feet, but no showing had
been reported.

In the early days of Oklahome Territory salt from the
Big Salt Plain supplied the local demand for miles around, and
there was quite & thriving industry on & small scale. When
the railroads were built through the territory it became
possible to obtain imported salt in most of the region,
formerly supplied from the Salt Plains, more cheaply than it
could be hauled from the plain. The market was thus greatly
restricted while the plains were still left so far from the
railroads as to render them incapable of development. The
amount of salt manufactured &t the plains in the past few
yeers has heen almost negligihle.ls

There are & number of salt springs in & cove on the south
gide of the Big Salt Plain, and it is here that the roock salt
of the plain is found. The oruet of salt near the springs
reaches & thickness of four to twelve inches in long con-
tinued dry spells. The smount of saturated brine going %o
waste on the Big Salt Plain and the Little Salt Plain is very

15
L. C. Snider. ome Geologlcsl Survey, No. 11, ppe 204~
209, Juiy, 1915 RnomE



diffioult to estimate, but is undoudbtedly very 1&:30.16

Perhaps the most noted of the salt plains from the stand-
point of the historian is the Big Salt Plain of the Cimarron,
The first white man to vieit this place wes probably Coronado
in his journey aeross the plain in search of the seven cities
of Cibola, The presence of & dozen or more trails now nearly
obsolete, radiating from the plain like spokes of & wheel, bears
testimony to the fact that this plice was long used as a
source of supply of salt to the various forts and settlements
of the suryounding regions. Indeed, it is but a few years
sinoe salt from this plain was hauled for hundreds of miles
in all direotions, and not until the time of discovery of
extensive beds in central Kansas dld this industry wa.na.n

The two Salt Plains on the Cimarron in Oklahome are
known &s Little and Big Sealt Pleins, Iittle Salt Plain lies
Just south of the Kansas line between Harper and Woode counties.
Big Salt Plain lies fifteen to twenty miles farther down the
river between Harper and Woodward counties on the southwest

and Woods county on the northwast.m

Meny fammers and ranchers
in Harper County continued to get & supply of salt from the

Big Salt Plain for their livestock until recent years., During
this time the consumption has been declining because farm
animals have been rapidly displaced by power machinery; howe-

ever, some salt is still hauled iram the plein by the ranchers.

16 1pia.

17 Chas, N. Gould. The Oklahoma Selt Plains. Kansas Academy
of Science, (1899-I900], XVII, PD. 1B2-1B3.

o 3mar. mo 0113-, De 2056.



The Blaine formation erosses the Cimerron just north of
the Kenses line and then follows down the stream on the south-
western side. FOr several miles it forms a narrow belt along
the southwestern bank with only a few narrow canyons extend-
ing as far as two miles back from the line of the bluffs, until
Buffalo Creek is reached in the southern part of T. 21 H.,

R. 20 We This oreek flows in & narrow canyon in the gypsums
from about five miles southwest of Charleston almost due east
until 1t enters the river. The canyon is narrow, not exceed ng
& mile in width, until very near the Cimarron river. On the
north side of the ocreek there are only & few minor irregular-
ities in the outerop, but on the opposite side Rece Horse,
Sand , and Sleeplng Bear oreeks carry the outerop back to

the south & few miles. The width of the outerop veries from
less than & mile to four or five miles. The line of hills
leaves the county south of Buffelo creek T. 27 Ne All the
gypsum is selentic. Good sections of the Blaine are very
rare., Probably the best exposure is nesr the Big salt Plain
on the Cimarron.

The gypeums of Harper county are well exposed for
quarrying, and the amount which gan be obtained is very great,
estimated by Gould at 10,000,000,000 tons. Several locations
along the Cimarron and along Buffalo ereek and its tributaries
furnish good situations for guarries, If transportation
facilities were at hand.®

19 snider, Op. Cit., pp. 188-141.



CONCLUSION

Harper county has made rapld progress since its settle-~
ment. Her life is still new; the resources of the county
are 8till undeveloped. The foundations have been laid anml
the future is all before her.

The "run" into Harper county is not to be confused with
other parts of the "Qutlet", where & great drame was being
enacted the day of the opening of the land to settlement; there
were not thousands of home seekers lining the border weiting
for the signal., Instead, only a few hundred found their wey
into this western part of the Oklshome Territory on the
opening day. This wes perhaps due to the following reassons;
the remoteness of the area to be settled, distance to markets,
and poorer soil conditions.

The eattle trails end winding rosds have been superceded
by hard surfaced highways and the railrozds, and the two day
trip for supplies of food and c¢lothing are but & memory today.
When the traveller observes the modern farms with their '
commodions homes, spacious barns, silos, and mechine sheds,
it is difficult to realize, that in their place forty years
ago stood adobe ani sod houses. The little fruit trees have
grown to be orchards, HNew school houses have been built.
Telephones and eventually rurel mail delivery Lave hbecome
common. Farming has been revolutionized and has developed
as the principal industry. The county is not heavily populeted
end no large cities have developed; however, the people,



generally, in this western county héve been very opbimistic

snd hove never besn easlly discourséged Juring the years of

b,

drouth zaod Jdeprezcions .

~
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